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December 29, 2021 

 
VIA EDIS 
 
The Honorable Lisa R. Barton 
Secretary to the Commission 
U.S. International Trade Commission 
500 E Street, SW, Room 112 
Washington, DC 20436 

Re: Certain Integrated Circuit Products and Devices Containing the 
Same, Investigation No. 337-TA-____ 

 
Dear Secretary Barton: 

Enclosed for filing on behalf of Complainant Future Link Systems, LLC are documents in support 
of Complainant’s request that the Commission commence an investigation pursuant to Section 337 
of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, concerning certain integrated circuit products and devices 
containing the same.  A request for confidential treatment of Confidential Exhibits 8C, 9C, and 
61C is also being submitted. 

In accordance with the Commission’s Temporary Change to the Filing Procedures dated March 
16, 2020 (“Temporary Procedures”), and the guidance provided on the Commission’s “COVID-
19-RELATED QUESTIONS” webpage, Complainant submits the following documents for filing 
via EDIS: 

1. A Statement on the Public Interest with respect to the remedial orders Complainant seeks 
in the Complaint, pursuant to Commission Rule 210.8(b).  

2. One (1) electronic copy of Complainants’ Verified Complaint pursuant to Commission 
Rule 210.8(a)(l)(i); 

3. One (1) electronic copy of the non-confidential exhibits to the Complaint, pursuant to 
Commission Rule 210.8(a)(l)(i);  

4. One (1) electronic copy of the confidential exhibits to the Complaint, pursuant to 
Commission Rules 201.6(c) arid 210.8(a)(l)(ii);  

5. One (1) electronic certified copy of U.S. Patent Nos. 7,685,439; and 8,099,614, included 
with the Complaint as Exhibits 1 and 2, pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(i); 
 

6. One (1) electronic certified copy of the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office prosecution 
history for U.S. Patent No. 7,685,439 included with the Complaint as Appendix A1, 
pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(C)(1); and one (1) electronic copy of the U.S. Patent 
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and Trademark Office prosecution history for U.S. Patent No. 8,099,614, included with the 
Complaint as Appendix B1; 

7. One (1) electronic certified copy of the Assignment Records for U.S. Patent Nos. 
7,685,439; and 8,099,614, included with the Complaint as Exhibits 3-7 pursuant to 
Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(ii); 

8. One (1) electronic copy of each technical reference cited in the prosecution history for U.S. 
Patent Nos. 7,685,439; and 8,099,614, included with the Complaint as Appendices A2-B2, 
pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(c)(2); and  

9. A letter and certification requesting confidential treatment for the information contained in 
Confidential Exhibits 8C, 9C, and 61C to the Complaint, pursuant to Commission Rules 
201.6(b) and 210.5(d). 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. Please contact me should you have any question 
concerning this submission. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

/s/ Matthew D. Aichele 

Matthew D. Aichele 

Enclosures  
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December 28, 2021 

 
VIA EDIS 
 
The Honorable Lisa R. Barton 
Secretary to the Commission 
U.S. International Trade Commission 
500 E Street, SW, Room 112 
Washington, DC 20436 

Re: Certain Integrated Circuit Products and Devices Containing the 
Same, Investigation No. 337-TA-____ 

 

Dear Secretary Barton: 

Complainant Future Link Systems, LLC, by counsel, hereby requests, pursuant to 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.5 and 
201.6, confidential treatment of the confidential business information contained in Confidential Exhibits 
8C, 9C, and 61C to Complainants’ Complaint transmitted herewith. 

Confidential treatment is sought for Confidential Exhibit 8C, which discloses the licensees to the Asserted 
Patents. Confidential treatment is sought for Confidential Exhibit 9C, which details NXP’s significant and 
substantial investments in the Domestic Industry Products. Confidential treatment is sought for Confidential 
Exhibit 61C, which is a confidential patent assignment and license agreement involving the Asserted 
Patents. 

The information described above qualifies as confidential information pursuant to 19 C.F.R. § 201.6 
because: 

a. it is not available to the public;  

b. unauthorized disclosure of such information could cause substantial harm to the competitive 
position of Complainant and its licensees; and  

c. its disclosure could impair the Commission’s ability to obtain information necessary to perform its 
statutory function.  

Please contact me should you have any question concerning this submission. 

Respectfully submitted,  

/s/ Matthew D. Aichele 

Matthew D. Aichele 

Enclosures 
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STATEMENT REGARDING THE PUBLIC INTEREST 

 Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.8(b), 19 C.F.R. § 210.8(b), Complainant Future Link 

Systems, LLC (“Future Link” or “Complainant”) respectfully submits this Statement Regarding 

the Public Interest.  Future Link seeks a limited exclusion order excluding from entry into the 

United States certain integrated circuit products and devices containing such products, including 

processors, mobile phones, tablets, personal computers, smart home devices and associated 

components thereof that infringe United States Patent Nos. 7,685,439 (“’439 Patent”) and 

8,099,614 (“’614 Patent”) (collectively, the “Asserted Patents”).  Future Link also seeks permanent 

cease and desist orders prohibiting Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. (“AMD”); Amlogic Holdings 

Inc. and Amlogic (CA) Co., Inc. (collectively, “Amlogic”); Apple, Inc. (“Apple”); Broadcom Inc. 

and Broadcom Corp. (collectively, “Broadcom”); Qualcomm Inc. and Qualcomm Technologies 

Inc. (collectively, “Qualcomm); Realtek Semiconductor Corp. (“Realtek”); Dell Technologies Inc. 

(“Dell”); HP Inc. (“HP”); Acer Inc. and Acer America Corp. (collectively, “Acer”); Lenovo Group 

Ltd., Lenovo (United States) Inc., and Motorola Mobility LLC (collectively, “Lenovo”); and 

Google LLC (“Google”) (collectively, the “Proposed Respondents”), their subsidiaries, related 

companies, and agents from engaging in the importation, sale for importation, marketing and/or 

advertising, distribution, offering for sale, sale, use after importation, sale after importation, or 

other transfer within the United States of certain integrated circuit products and devices containing 
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such products that infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Patents. Exclusion of such products 

from the United States will not have an adverse effect on the public health and welfare in the 

United States, competitive conditions in the United States economy, the production of like or 

directly competitive articles in the United States, or United States consumers. 

Exclusion of the Proposed Respondents’ infringing integrated circuit products and devices 

containing such products would not “deprive the public of products necessary for some important 

health or welfare need.” Spansion, Inc. v. U.S. Int’l Trade Comm’n, 629 F.3d 1331, 1360 (Fed. 

Cir. 2010). Further, because Future Link’s licensees supply the market for integrated circuit 

products, consumers would not face any substantial shortage of like or competitive products in the 

United States. As described in the Complaint, Future Link’s licensees supply integrated circuit 

products to the U.S. market, as do third parties Thus, this Investigation does not present an instance 

where a compelling public interest would supersede entry of the requested remedial orders. 

I. Explanation of How the Articles Potentially Subject to the Remedial Orders Are 
Used in The United States   

The products at issue in this investigation include integrated circuit products and devices 

containing such products, including processors, mobile phones, tablets, personal computers, and 

smart home devices that are commonly used by consumers in residential and commercial 

applications. The Asserted Patents generally relate to the integrated circuits and power-saving 

features therefor. Some of the products at issue in this investigation are generally used by the end 

consumers and/or manufacturers for personal, business, and/or communication purposes. 

II. Identification of Any Public Health, Safety, or Welfare Concerns Relating to the 
Requested Remedial Orders 

Issuance of the requested remedial orders would have no adverse effect on the public 

health, safety, or welfare in the United States.  In general, concerns about a negative impact on 

public health, safety, or welfare have arisen in cases involving pharmaceuticals, essential 
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equipment for medical treatment, or green technology products, such as hybrid cars and solar 

panels.  See Spansion, 629 F.3d at 1360. For example, the Commission has previously concluded 

that access to essential medical equipment used to treat burn victims is a significant public interest 

consideration because the equipment “provide[s] benefits unavailable from any other device or 

method of treatment.” Certain Fluidized Supporting Apparatus & Components Thereof, Inv. No. 

337-TA-182/ 188, USITC Pub. 1667, Comm’n Op. at 23-25 (Oct. 1984).  None of these concerns 

are present here. And as discussed further below, the requested remedial orders will not 

significantly impact the overall market for integrated circuit products and devices containing such 

products in the United States. 

 Accordingly, access to the accused products does not implicate any meaningful public 

health, safety, or welfare concern.  Indeed, the requested relief serves the public interest because, 

as previously recognized by the Commission, there is a strong public interest in protecting 

intellectual property rights. See, e.g., Certain Baseband Processor Chips and Chipsets, 

Transmitter and Receiver (Radio) Chips, Power Control Chips, and Products Containing Same, 

Including Cellular Telephone Handsets, Inv. No. 337-TA-543, Comm’n Op. at 136–37 (June 19, 

2007). This strong interest in protecting Future Link’s intellectual property rights and the domestic 

industry set forth in the Complaint far outweighs any hypothetical adverse effect on the public. 

III. Identification of Like or Directly Competitive Articles That Complainant, Its 
Licensees, or Third Parties Make Which Could Replace the Subject Article If 
They Were to Be Excluded 

Integrated circuit products and devices containing such products are available from 

multiple sources with which Proposed Respondents compete.  As an initial matter, Future Link’s 

licensees adequately supply the market and will continue to do so irrespective of whether the 

requested remedial orders are issued.  Moreover, Proposed Respondents are a subset of suppliers 

of integrated circuit products and devices containing such products in the United States market, 
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and Proposed Respondents’ products do not contain any unique health or safety-related features. 

No public interest concerns exist where the market contains an adequate supply of competitive or 

substitute products for those subject to a remedial order. See, e.g., Certain Lens Fitted Film 

Packages, Inv. No. 337-TA-406, Comm’n Op. at 18 (June 28, 1999). The integrated circuit 

products and devices containing such products market is highly competitive, and numerous 

companies, including Future Link’s licensees, have the capacity to replace Proposed Respondents’ 

volume of production of infringing products for the United States market without delay. 

IV. Indication of Whether Complainant, Complainant’s Licensees, and/or Third-
Party Suppliers Have the Capacity to Replace the Volume of Articles Subject to 
the Requested Remedial Orders in a Commercially Reasonable Time 

Integrated circuit products and devices containing such products are currently available in 

the United States including products from Future Link’s licensees and non-Respondent third 

parties. Future Link’s licensees and the non-Respondent third parties have the capacity to increase 

domestic production of integrated circuit products and devices containing such products should 

demand require. In addition, non-infringing integrated circuit products and devices containing such 

products will also continue to be available from third-party suppliers. Consequently, consumers 

would have access to competitive non-infringing products from Future Link’s licensees and third 

parties in amounts sufficient to meet the demand should the accused products be excluded from 

the United States.  

V. Statement of How the Requested Remedial Order Would Impact Consumers 

Consumers will have available to them in the United States marketplace a wide variety of 

integrated circuit products and devices containing such products including those supplied by 

Future Link’s licensees, as well as other competitive non-infringing products, if the accused 

products are excluded from the United States. In view of the availability of commercial alternatives 

to the accused products, the exclusion of the infringing integrated circuit products and devices 
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containing such products will not negatively impact consumers in the United States. Rather, the 

requested relief will serve the public interest by enforcing United States intellectual-property 

rights. Precluding the Proposed Respondents from importing and selling their integrated circuit 

products and devices containing such products will benefit the public interest by protecting 

innovators, such as Future Link and its licensees, who invest domestically to research and develop 

new energy-efficient technology. Permitting unlicensed suppliers like the Proposed Respondents 

to import and sell infringing integrated circuit products and devices containing such products 

would not only devalue the licenses Future Link granted to other companies, but would also 

undermine future investment in similar technology. See Certain Display Controllers and Products 

Containing Same, Inv. No. 337-TA-491/481, Comm’n Op. at 66 (Feb. 2005).  
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Dated:  December 29, 2021 Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Matthew D. Aichele  
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Matthew D. Aichele 
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Washington, DC 20024  
Phone: (202) 664-0623  
 
Counsel for Complainant Future Link 
Systems, LLC 
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I. INTRODUCTION  

1. This Complaint is filed by Complainant Future Link Systems, LLC (“Future Link” 

or “Complainant”) pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 

1337 (“Section 337”).  

2. This Complaint was prepared with the cooperation of Future Link’s domestic 

licensee NXP Semiconductors N.V. (“NXP”). NXP entered into a common interest agreement 

with Future Link and submitted a domestic industry declaration (Ex. 9C) accompanying this 

Complaint. NXP has also committed to cooperating with discovery requests relating to NXP’s 

domestic industry in the Asserted Patents. Furthermore, as part of the purchase agreement to the 

Asserted Patents, NXP has a financial interest in the outcome of litigation involving the Asserted 

Patents. 

3. Complainant brings this action to remedy violations of Section 337 arising from the 

unlawful and unauthorized importation into the United States, the sale for importation into the 

United States, and/or the sale within the United States after importation, of certain integrated 

circuit products and products containing the same (the “Accused Products”) that infringe one or 

more of the Asserted Claims of United States Patents Nos. 7,685,439 (“the ’439 Patent,” attached 

as Exhibit 1) and 8,099,614 (“the ’614 Patent,” attached as Exhibit 2) (collectively, the “Asserted 

Patents”).  

4. Complainant asserts that the Accused Products infringe at least the following claims 

of one or more Asserted Patents in violation of Section 337(a)(1)(B)(i), either literally or under the 

doctrine of equivalents: 
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Asserted Patent Asserted Claims1 

’439 Patent 1, 2-6 

’614 Patent 1, 2-9 
Table 1. The Asserted Claims. 

 
5. The Proposed Respondents are Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. (“AMD”); Amlogic 

Holdings Inc. and Amlogic (CA) Co., Inc. (collectively, “Amlogic”); Apple, Inc. (“Apple”); 

Broadcom Inc. and Broadcom Corp. (collectively, “Broadcom”); Qualcomm Inc. and Qualcomm 

Technologies Inc. (collectively, “Qualcomm); Realtek Semiconductor Corp. (“Realtek”); Dell 

Technologies Inc. (“Dell”); HP Inc. (“HP”); Acer Inc. and Acer America Corp. (collectively, 

“Acer”); Lenovo Group Ltd., Lenovo (United States) Inc., and Motorola Mobility LLC 

(collectively, “Lenovo”); and Google LLC (“Google”). Collectively, these Proposed Respondents 

are referred to herein as “Respondents.” 

6. As set forth in this Complaint, each of the Respondents imports into the United 

States, sells for importation into the United States, and/or sells in the United States after 

importation Accused Products that directly infringe the Asserted Patents, and/or indirectly infringe 

the Asserted Patents by induced or contributory infringement. 

7. Complainant seeks, as relief for the unfair acts of the Respondents, the following: 

(i) institution of an investigation into Respondents’ violations; (ii) a public hearing; (iii) a limited 

exclusion order barring from entry into the United States the Accused Products that infringe one 

or more of the Asserted Patents; (iv) a permanent cease and desist order prohibiting the 

importation, sale, sale for importation, offer for sale, and soliciting of the sale in the United States, 

of the Accused Products that infringe one or more the Asserted Patents; (v) the imposition of a 

 
1 Independent claims are in bold. 
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bond during the 60-day Presidential review period pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(j); and (vi) such 

other relief as the Commission deems proper.  

8. A domestic industry exists as the result of activities and investments in the United 

States related to products that practice the Asserted Patents. These activities include the current 

and ongoing significant and substantial domestic investments in plant, equipment, labor, and 

capital of Future Link’s licensee NXP Semiconductors N.V. (“NXP”). 

II. THE PARTIES 

A. Complainant 

9. Complainant Future Link is a Delaware limited liability company organized and 

existing under the law of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of business at 3945 

Freedom Circle, Suite 900, Santa Clara, California 95054. Future Link is the sole owner by 

assignment of all right, title, and interest in each Asserted Patent. 

10. One of Future Link’s domestic licensees is NXP, which is a company organized 

under the laws of the Netherlands. NXP has numerous United States locations, including several 

wafer fabrication facilities, several research and development offices, and numerous sales offices. 

The inventions claimed by the Asserted Patents were developed by NXP engineers, the majority 

of whom worked in the United States. NXP is the predecessor-in-interest of each of the Asserted 

Patents and has a non-exclusive license to practice each of the Asserted Patents. 

11. Recently, an increase in unlicensed imported products has caused increased supply 

of infringing goods that compete with lawfully licensed NXP products. Complainant Future Link, 

in partnership with NXP, has undertaken the task of counteracting these unfair and unlawful acts. 

12. The partnership between Future Link and NXP is intended to protect and increase 

American-made goods and American jobs, including jobs at NXP’s Austin, Texas location. 

Although NXP is a third party, NXP has a sincere interest in this case—NXP has provided a 
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declaration regarding NXP’s domestic industry in support of this Complaint, and has also agreed 

to cooperate with appropriate domestic industry discovery in this case. See Ex. 9C; id. at ¶ 4. With 

NXP’s cooperation, Future Link intends to protect the interests of NXP (and other licensees) by 

enforcing its licensed patents. 

B. Proposed Respondents 

 AMD 

13. Advanced Micro Devices (“AMD”) is a corporation organized under the laws of 

the State of Delaware, with a principal place of business at 2485 Augustine Drive, Santa Clara, 

CA 95054. 

14. On information and belief, AMD designs and manufactures and/or has 

manufactured abroad on its behalf certain Accused Products that are then sold for importation into 

the United States, imported into the United States, and/or sold within the United States after 

importation. See Exhibits 13-14. 

 Amlogic 

15. Amlogic Holdings Ltd. is a Cayman Islands company with mailing address Collas 

Crill Corporate Services Limited, P. O. Box 709, Floor 2, Willow House, Cricket Square Grand 

Cayman, KY1-1107, Cayman Islands. 

16. Amlogic (CA) Co. Inc. is a company organized under the laws of the state of 

California with a principal place of business at 2518 Mission College Blvd., Suite 120, Santa Clara, 

CA 95054. Amlogic (CA) Co. Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Amlogic Holdings, Ltd. 

17. On information and belief, Amlogic Holdings Ltd., through its subsidiaries 

including Amlogic (CA) Co. Inc., designs and manufactures and/or has manufactured abroad on 

its behalf certain Accused Products that are then sold for importation into the United States, 
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imported into the United States, and/or sold within the United States after importation. See Exhibits 

10, 12. 

 Apple 

18. Apple, Inc. is a publicly traded corporation organized under the laws of the State of 

California, with its principal place of business at One Apple Park Way, Cupertino, CA 95014. 

19. On information and belief, Apple designs and manufactures and/or has 

manufactured abroad on its behalf certain Accused Products that are then sold for importation into 

the United States, imported into the United States, and/or sold within the United States after 

importation. See Exhibits 53-54. 

 Broadcom 

20. Broadcom Inc. is a company organized under the laws of the state of Delaware, 

with its principal place of business at 1320 Ridder Park Drive, San Jose, California 95131. 

21. Broadcom Corporation is a company organized and existing under the laws of 

California, with its principal place of business at 1320 Ridder Park Drive, San Jose, California 

95131. Broadcom Inc. and Broadcom Corporation are collectively referred to as “Broadcom.” 

22. On information and belief, Broadcom designs and manufactures and/or has 

manufactured abroad on its behalf certain Accused Products, that are then sold for importation into 

the United States, imported into the United States, and/or sold within the United States after 

importation. See Exhibits 10-11. 

 Qualcomm 

23. Qualcomm Inc. is a company organized under the laws of the state of Delaware 

with a principal place of business at 5775 Morehouse Dr., San Diego, CA 92121.  
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24. Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. is a company organized under the laws of the state 

of Delaware with a principal place of business at 5775 Morehouse Dr., San Diego, CA 92121. 

Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Qualcomm Inc.  

25. On information and belief, Qualcomm Technologies Inc., along with its 

subsidiaries, designs and manufactures and/or has manufactured abroad on its behalf certain 

Accused Products that are then sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United 

States, and/or sold within the United States after importation. See Exhibits 21-22. 

 Realtek 

26. Realtek Semiconductor Corp. is a corporation organized under the laws of Taiwan, 

with its principal place of business at No. 2 Innovation Road II, Hsinchu Science Park, Hsinchu 

300, Taiwan. 

27. On information and belief, Realtek Semiconductor Corp., along with its 

subsidiaries, designs and manufactures and/or has manufactured abroad on its behalf certain 

Accused Products that are then sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United 

States, and/or sold within the United States after importation. See Exhibits 15-16. 

 Dell 

28. Dell Technologies Inc. is a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware, with 

its principal place of business at One Dell Way, Round Rock, Texas 78682. 

29. On information and belief, Dell Technologies Inc., along with its subsidiaries, 

designs and manufactures and/or has manufactured abroad on its behalf certain Accused Products 

that are then sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United States, and/or 

sold within the United States after importation. See Exhibits 17-18. 
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 HP 

30. HP Inc. is a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware, with its principal 

place of business at 1501 Page Mill Road, Palo Alto, California 94304. 

31. On information and belief, HP Inc., along with its subsidiaries, designs and 

manufactures and/or has manufactured abroad on its behalf certain Accused Products that are then 

sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United States, and/or sold within the 

United States after importation. See Exhibits 19-20. 

 Acer 

32. Acer Inc. is a corporation organized under the laws of Taiwan, with its principal 

place of business at 8F, 88, Sec. 1, Xintai 5th Rd., Xizhi, New Taipei City 221, Taiwan. 

33. Acer America Corp. is a subsidiary of Acer, Inc., organized under the laws of 

California, with its principal place of business at 1730 North First Street, Suite 400, San Jose CA 

95112. 

34. On information and belief, Acer Inc., along with its subsidiaries including Acer 

America Corp., designs and manufactures and/or has manufactured abroad on its behalf certain 

Accused Products that are then sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United 

States, and/or sold within the United States after importation. See Exhibits 51-52. 

 Lenovo 

35. Lenovo Group Ltd. is a company incorporated under the laws of the Hong Kong, 

with its principal place of business at New Town Plaza Phase 1, Hong Kong, China. 

36. Lenovo (United States) Inc. is a subsidiary of Lenovo Group Ltd., organized under 

the laws of Delaware, with its principal place of business at 1009 Think Place, Morrisville, North 

Carolina 27560. 
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37. Motorola Mobility LLC is a subsidiary of Lenovo Group Ltd., organized under the 

laws of Delaware, with its principal place of business at 222 W. Merchandise Mark Plaza Suite 

1800, Chicago, Illinois 60654. 

38. On information and belief, Lenovo Group Ltd., along with its subsidiaries including 

Motorola Mobility LLC and Lenovo (United States) Inc., designs and manufactures and/or has 

manufactured abroad on its behalf certain Accused Products that are then sold for importation into 

the United States, imported into the United States, and/or sold within the United States after 

importation. See Exhibits 21-22, 55-56. 

 Google 

39. Google LLC is a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware, with its 

principal place of business at 1600 Amphitheatre Parkway, Mountain View, CA 94043. 

40. On information and belief, Google LLC, along with its subsidiaries, designs and 

manufactures and/or has manufactured abroad on its behalf certain Accused Products that are then 

sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United States, and/or sold within the 

United States after importation. See Exhibits 57-58. 

III. THE TECHNOLOGY AND PRODUCTS AT ISSUE 

41. Pursuant to 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.10(b)(1) and 210.12(a)(12), the categories of products 

accused of infringing one or more of the Asserted Patents are processors, as well as mobile phones, 

tablets, personal computers, and smart home devices containing processors. As shown in the table 

below, the category of Accused Products for each Respondent varies:  
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 Processors Mobile 
Phones / 
Tablets 

Personal 
Computers 

Smart 
Home 
Devices 

AMD X    
Amlogic X    
Apple X X   
Broadcom X    
Qualcomm X    
Realtek X    
Dell X X X  
HP X X X  
Acer X X X  
Lenovo X X X  
Google X X  X 

  
42.  Respondents infringe the Asserted Patents through the sale for importation into the 

United States, importation into the United States, and/or sale within the United States after 

importation of such Accused Products. Exemplary identifications of such infringing products are 

provided in Section V below. 

IV. THE ASSERTED PATENTS  

43. The Asserted Patents generally relate to integrated circuits and power-saving 

features therefor. Integrated circuits are a major contributor to power consumption in computing 

systems, and the power required for their operation consumes energy and produces heat. In recent 

years, techniques for reducing power consumption have become a primary concern of companies 

that design and sell products that include integrated circuits, especially as the demand for 

increasingly powerful portable computing devices with long-lasting battery capacities continues 

to increase.  

44. The inventions of the ’439 and ’614 Patents provide important advances in power-

saving techniques for integrated circuits, which allow computing devices to reduce power 

consumption rapidly and efficiently for particular components of an integrated circuit device that 
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are not being used at a particular moment in time. By rapidly placing computing components into 

a low-power state during moments of non-use, computing devices can achieve substantial power 

savings while having negligible impacts on speed and performance. 

45. The identification, ownership, non-technical description, foreign counterparts, and 

licensees for each Asserted Patent are identified below. 

A. U.S. Patent No. 7,685,439 

 Identification of the Patent and Ownership 

46. The ’439 Patent, titled “Method for effecting the controlled shutdown of data 

processing units,” issued on March 23, 2010, naming Wolfram Drescher as the inventor. Ex. 1 

(’439 Patent) at 1. The ’439 Patent is based on U.S. Patent Application No. 10/514,850 filed May 

13, 2003. Id. at 1. The ’439 Patent claims priority to foreign application DE10221529A1 filed May 

14, 2002. Id. The expiration date of the ’439 Patent is March 5, 2024. A certified copy of the ’439 

Patent is attached as Exhibit 1.  

47. This Complaint is accompanied by a certified copy of the prosecution history for 

the ’439 Patent, three additional copies of the prosecution history, and four copies of each patent 

and applicable pages of each technical reference mentioned in the prosecution history for the ’439 

Patent. See Appx. A1 and A2. 

48. Future Link owns by assignment all rights, title, and interest in the ’439 Patent. See 

Exhibits 3-4, 6-7. 

 Nontechnical Description of the Patent 

49. The ’439 Patent concerns improved designs and methods relating to signal 

processors that have single instruction multiple data (“SIMD”) capabilities. Typically, in 

processors that have multiple functional units or data paths, those functional units or data paths 

continue to consume significant amounts of power even when they are not being used for the 
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processor’s operation. The ‘439 patent teaches and claims improved designs and methods relating 

to at least this problem. 

 Foreign Counterparts of the Patent 

50. The following foreign patents and patent applications correspond to the ’439 Patent: 

DE 10221529.4, which lapsed, and PCT/DE2003/001539EP, which resulted in national phase 

entries (a) CN 03811038.5, which is abandoned; (b) EP 03732230.2, which was withdrawn; (c) 

KR 10-2004-7018364, which was rejected; and (d) JP 2004-504428, which is abandoned. 

Application PCT/DE/2003/001539EP was also assigned an application number AU 2003239760 

(which is lapsed) without the filing of an Australian national phase entry application. 

51. To the best of Future Link’s knowledge, information, and belief, there are no other 

foreign patents issued or foreign patent applications pending, filed, abandoned, withdrawn, or 

rejected corresponding to the ’439 Patent. 

 Licensee(s) 

52. All known licensee(s) to the ’439 Patent (including, among others, NXP 

Semiconductors N.V., Intel Corporation, Nvidia Corporation and Marvell Semiconductor, Inc.) 

are identified in Confidential Exhibit 8. There are no other licenses relating to the ’439 Patent of 

which Future Link is aware. 

B. U.S. Patent No. 8,099,614 

 Identification of the Patent and Ownership 

53. The ’614 Patent, titled “Power management for buses in CMOS circuits,” issued on 

January 17, 2012, naming Tim Pontius, Swati Saxena, Neal Wingen, and Niranjan A. Puttaswamy 

as the inventors. Ex. 2 (’614 Patent) at 1. The ’614 Patent is based on U.S. Patent Application 

No. 12/066,113 filed September 11, 2006. Id. at 1. The ’614 Patent claims priority to U.S. 
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Provisional Application No. 60/716,730 filed September 12, 2005. Id. The expiration date of the 

’614 Patent is May 9, 2029. A certified copy of the ’614 Patent is attached as Exhibit 2.  

54. This Complaint is accompanied by a certified copy of the prosecution history for 

the ’614 Patent, three additional copies of the prosecution history, and four copies of each patent 

and applicable pages of each technical reference mentioned in the prosecution history for the ’614 

Patent. See Appx. B1 and B2. 

55. Future Link owns by assignment all rights, title, and interest in the ’614 Patent. See 

Exhibits 5-7. 

 Nontechnical Description of the Patent 

56. The ’614 Patent concerns improved designs and methods relating to power usage 

within integrated circuits. When an integrated circuit device places some, but not all, elements of 

the integrated circuit into a reduced power state, those elements may nevertheless continue to use 

significant amounts of power if they continue to receive certain high-power state signals from 

other elements of the integrated circuit. This increased power consumption may be especially 

problematic for mobile devices. Furthermore, high-power state signals received by an integrated 

circuit element that has been placed into a reduced power state may result in unintended operation 

of that element.  The ’614 Patent teaches and claims improved designs and methods relating to at 

least this problem. 

 Foreign Counterparts of the Patent 

57. The following foreign patents and patent applications correspond to the ’614 Patent: 

PCT/IB2006/053217, which resulted in national phase entries (a) CN 200680033302.2, which is 

abandoned; (b) EP 06795991.6, which was withdrawn; and (c) JP 2008-529769, which was 

withdrawn. 
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58. To the best of Future Link’s knowledge, information, and belief, there are no other 

foreign patents issued or foreign patent applications pending, filed, abandoned, withdrawn, or 

rejected corresponding to the ’614 Patent. 

 Licensee(s) 

59. All known licensee(s) to the ’614 Patent (including, among others, NXP 

Semiconductors N.V., Intel Corporation, Nvidia Corporation and Marvell Semiconductor, Inc.) 

are identified in Confidential Exhibit 8C. There are no other licenses relating to the ’614 Patent of 

which Future Link is aware. 

V. UNLAWFUL AND UNFAIR ACTS OF THE RESPONDENTS 

60. Future Link asserts that the Respondents directly infringe, literally or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, and/or actively induce the infringement infringe at least claims 1-6 of the 

’439 Patent and at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. §§ 271(a), (b), 

and/or (c) and Section 337(a)(1)(B)(i), as described in further detail below. 

A. AMD 

 Infringement of the ’439 Patent 

61. On information and belief, AMD imports, sells for importation, and/or sells within 

the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “AMD Accused Products”), such 

as products containing CPUs and GPUs, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent. The AMD Accused Products are configured 

to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent at the time of importation 

into the United States. 

62. AMD also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-6 

of the ’439 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through at least the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 
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referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’439 Patent litigation against AMD, AMD has 

had knowledge of the ’439 Patent and the infringing nature of the AMD Accused Products. Despite 

this knowledge of the ’439 Patent, AMD continues to actively encourage and instruct its customers 

and end users (for example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials on its 

website) to use the AMD Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’439 Patent. AMD 

does so knowing and intending that its customers and end users will commit these infringing acts. 

AMD also continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United States the AMD 

Accused Products, despite its knowledge of the ’439 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and 

inducing its customers to infringe the ’439 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary 

use of the AMD Accused Products. 

63. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’439 Patent to a representative 

AMD Accused Product, the AMD A8-9600, and including photographs and drawings where 

applicable, is attached as Exhibit 22. Additional exemplary products that are believed to infringe 

include all products that use AMD Family 15h or later processors.  

 Infringement of the ’614 Patent 

64. On information and belief, AMD imports, sells for importation, and/or sells within 

the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “AMD Accused Products”), such 

as products containing CPUs and GPUs, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent. The AMD Accused Products are configured 

to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent at the time of importation 

into the United States. 

65. AMD also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-9 

of the ’614 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through at least the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 



 
 

 
 

15 

referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’614 Patent litigation against AMD, AMD has 

had knowledge of the ’614 Patent and the infringing nature of the AMD Accused Products. Despite 

this knowledge of the ’614 Patent, AMD continues to actively encourage and instruct its customers 

and end users (for example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials on its 

website) to use the AMD Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’614 Patent. AMD 

does so knowing and intending that its customers and end users will commit these infringing acts. 

AMD also continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United States the AMD 

Accused Products, despite its knowledge of the ’614 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and 

inducing its customers to infringe the ’614 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary 

use of the AMD Accused Products. 

66. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’614 Patent to a representative 

AMD Accused Product, the AMD A8-9600, and including photographs and drawings where 

applicable, is attached as Exhibit 35.  Additional exemplary products that are believed to infringe 

include APUs and GPUs that include AMD’s universal video decoder or unified video decoder 

(“UVD”) technology. 

B. Apple 

 Infringement of the ’439 Patent 

67. On information and belief, Apple imports, sells for importation, and/or sells within 

the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Apple Accused Products”), 

such as System-on-Chip devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent. The Apple Accused Products are configured to 

practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent at the time of importation 

into the United States. 
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68. Apple also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-6 

of the ’439 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through previous correspondence between 

Future Link and Apple (including a notice letter Future Link sent to Apple identifying Apple’s 

infringement of the ’439 Patent), through the filing and service of this Complaint, and also through 

the filing and service of the related District Court complaints referenced in Section VIII, including 

the related ’439 Patent litigation against Apple, Apple has had knowledge of the ’439 Patent and 

the infringing nature of the Apple Accused Products. Despite this knowledge of the ’439 Patent, 

Apple continues to actively encourage and instruct its customers and end users (for example, 

through its user manuals and online instruction materials on its website) to use the Apple Accused 

Products in ways that directly infringe the ’439 Patent. Apple does so knowing and intending that 

its customers and end users will commit these infringing acts. Apple also continues to import, sell 

for importation, and/or sell in the United States the Apple Accused Products, despite its knowledge 

of the ’439 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing its customers to infringe the 

’439 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the Apple Accused Products. 

69. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’439 Patent to a representative 

Apple Accused Product, the iPhone SE which includes an Apple A13 SoC, and including 

photographs and drawings where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 24. Additional exemplary 

products that are believed to infringe include all Apple products that include an A-Series A7 or 

later SoC. 

 Infringement of the ’614 Patent 

70. On information and belief, Apple imports, sells for importation, and/or sells within 

the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Apple Accused Products”), 

such as System-on-Chip devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent. The Apple Accused Products are configured to 
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practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent at the time of importation 

into the United States. 

71. Apple also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-9 

of the ’614 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through previous correspondence between 

Future Link and Apple (including a notice letter Future Link sent to Apple identifying Apple’s 

infringement of the ’614 Patent), through the filing and service of this Complaint, and also through 

the filing and service of the related District Court complaints referenced in Section VIII, including 

the related ’614 Patent litigation against Apple, Apple has had knowledge of the ’614 Patent and 

the infringing nature of the Apple Accused Products. Despite this knowledge of the ’614 Patent, 

Apple continues to actively encourage and instruct its customers and end users (for example, 

through its user manuals and online instruction materials on its website) to use the Apple Accused 

Products in ways that directly infringe the ’614 Patent. Apple does so knowing and intending that 

its customers and end users will commit these infringing acts. Apple also continues to import, sell 

for importation, and/or sell in the United States the Apple Accused Products, despite its knowledge 

of the ’614 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing its customers to infringe the 

’614 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the Apple Accused Products. 

72. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’614 Patent to a representative 

Apple Accused Product, the iPhone SE which includes an Apple A13 SoC, and including 

photographs and drawings where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 36. Additional exemplary 

products that are believed to infringe include all Apple products that include an A-Series A7 or 

later SoC. 



 
 

 
 

18 

C. Amlogic 

 Infringement of the ’439 Patent 

73. On information and belief, Amlogic imports, sells for importation, and/or sells 

within the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Amlogic Accused 

Products”), such as System-on-Chip devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent. The Amlogic Accused Products are 

configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent at the time of 

importation into the United States. 

74. Amlogic also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 

1-6 of the ’439 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through previous correspondence 

between Future Link and Amlogic (including a notice letter Future Link sent to Amlogic 

identifying Amlogic’s infringement of the ’439 Patent), through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 

referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’439 Patent litigation against Amlogic, Amlogic 

has had knowledge of the ’439 Patent and the infringing nature of the Amlogic Accused Products. 

Despite this knowledge of the ’439 Patent, Amlogic continues to actively encourage and instruct 

its customers and end users (for example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials 

on its website) to use the Amlogic Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’439 Patent. 

Amlogic does so knowing and intending that its customers and end users will commit these 

infringing acts. Amlogic also continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United 

States the Amlogic Accused Products, despite its knowledge of the ’439 Patent, thereby 

specifically intending for and inducing its customers to infringe the ’439 Patent through the 

customers’ normal and customary use of the Amlogic Accused Products. 
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75. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’439 Patent to a representative 

Amlogic Accused Product, the Amlogic S905, and including photographs and drawings where 

applicable, is attached as Exhibit 25. Additional exemplary products that are believed to infringe 

include the Amlogic S905X, X905L, S905D, S905W, S905Z, S905X2, S905Y2, S912, S922X, 

S805X, A111, A112, A113, A311X, and A311D. 

 Infringement of the ’614 Patent 

76. On information and belief, Amlogic imports, sells for importation, and/or sells 

within the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Amlogic Accused 

Products”), such as System-on-Chip devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent. The Amlogic Accused Products are 

configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent at the time of 

importation into the United States. 

77. Amlogic also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 

1-9 of the ’614 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through previous correspondence 

between Future Link and Amlogic (including a notice letter Future Link sent to Amlogic 

identifying Amlogic’s infringement of the ’614 Patent), through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 

referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’614 Patent litigation against Amlogic, Amlogic 

has had knowledge of the ’614 Patent and the infringing nature of the Amlogic Accused Products. 

Despite this knowledge of the ’614 Patent, Amlogic continues to actively encourage and instruct 

its customers and end users (for example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials 

on its website) to use the Amlogic Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’614 Patent. 

Amlogic does so knowing and intending that its customers and end users will commit these 

infringing acts. Amlogic also continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United 
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States the Amlogic Accused Products, despite its knowledge of the ’614 Patent, thereby 

specifically intending for and inducing its customers to infringe the ’614 Patent through the 

customers’ normal and customary use of the Amlogic Accused Products. 

78. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’614 Patent to a representative 

Amlogic Accused Product, the Amlogic S905, and including photographs and drawings where 

applicable, is attached as Exhibit 37. Additional exemplary products that are believed to infringe 

include the Amlogic S905X, X905L, S905D, S905W, S905Z, S905X2, S905Y2, S912, S922X, 

S805X, A111, A112, A113, A311X, and A311D. 

D. Broadcom 

 Infringement of the ’439 Patent 

79. On information and belief, Broadcom imports, sells for importation, and/or sells 

within the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Broadcom Accused 

Products”), such as System-on-Chip devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent. The Broadcom Accused Products 

are configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-6 of the ‘439 Patent at the time 

of importation into the United States. 

80. Broadcom also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 

1-6 of the ’439 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through previous correspondence 

between Future Link and Broadcom (including a notice letter Future Link sent to Broadcom 

identifying Broadcom’s infringement of the ’439 Patent), through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 

referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’439 Patent litigation against Broadcom, 

Broadcom has had knowledge of the ’439 Patent and the infringing nature of the Broadcom 

Accused Products. Despite this knowledge of the ’439 Patent, Broadcom continues to actively 
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encourage and instruct its customers and end users (for example, through its user manuals and 

online instruction materials on its website) to use the Broadcom Accused Products in ways that 

directly infringe the ’439 Patent. Broadcom does so knowing and intending that its customers and 

end users will commit these infringing acts. Broadcom also continues to import, sell for 

importation, and/or sell in the United States the Broadcom Accused Products, despite its 

knowledge of the ’439 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing its customers to 

infringe the ’439 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the Broadcom 

Accused Products. 

81. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’439 Patent to a representative 

Broadcom Accused Product, the Broadcom BCM2711, and including photographs and drawings 

where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 26. Additional exemplary products that are believed to 

infringe include the Broadcom BCM58800, BCM58732, and BCM2837. 

 Infringement of the ’614 Patent 

82. On information and belief, Broadcom imports, sells for importation, and/or sells 

within the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Broadcom Accused 

Products”), such as System-on-Chip devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent. The Broadcom Accused Products 

are configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent at the time 

of importation into the United States. 

83. Broadcom also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 

1-9 of the ’614 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through previous correspondence 

between Future Link and Broadcom (including a notice letter Future Link sent to Broadcom 

identifying Broadcom’s infringement of the ’614 Patent), through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 
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referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’614 Patent litigation against Broadcom, 

Broadcom has had knowledge of the ’614 Patent and the infringing nature of the Broadcom 

Accused Products. Despite this knowledge of the ’614 Patent, Broadcom continues to actively 

encourage and instruct its customers and end users (for example, through its user manuals and 

online instruction materials on its website) to use the Broadcom Accused Products in ways that 

directly infringe the ’614 Patent. Broadcom does so knowing and intending that its customers and 

end users will commit these infringing acts. Broadcom also continues to import, sell for 

importation, and/or sell in the United States the Broadcom Accused Products, despite its 

knowledge of the ’614 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing its customers to 

infringe the ’614 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the Broadcom 

Accused Products. 

84. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’614 Patent to a representative 

Broadcom Accused Product, the Broadcom BCM2711, and including photographs and drawings 

where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 38. Additional exemplary products that are believed to 

infringe include the Broadcom BCM58800, BCM58732, and BCM2837. 

E. Qualcomm 

 Infringement of the ’439 Patent 

85. On information and belief, Qualcomm imports, sells for importation, and/or sells 

within the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Qualcomm Accused 

Products”), such as System-on-Chip devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent. The Qualcomm Accused Products 

are configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent at the time 

of importation into the United States. 
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86. Qualcomm also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 

1-6 of the ’439 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through previous correspondence 

between Future Link and Qualcomm (including a claim chart Future Link provided to Qualcomm 

identifying Qualcomm’s infringement of the ’439 Patent), through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 

referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’439 Patent litigation against Qualcomm, 

Qualcomm has had knowledge of the ’439 Patent and the infringing nature of the Qualcomm 

Accused Products. Despite this knowledge of the ’439 Patent, Qualcomm continues to actively 

encourage and instruct its customers and end users (for example, through its user manuals and 

online instruction materials on its website) to use the Qualcomm Accused Products in ways that 

directly infringe the ’439 Patent. Qualcomm does so knowing and intending that its customers and 

end users will commit these infringing acts. Qualcomm also continues to import, sell for 

importation, and/or sell in the United States the Qualcomm Accused Products, despite its 

knowledge of the ’439 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing its customers to 

infringe the ’439 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the Qualcomm 

Accused Products. 

87. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’439 Patent to a representative 

Qualcomm Accused Product, the Qualcomm Snapdragon 730G, and including photographs and 

drawings where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 27. Additional exemplary products that are 

believed to infringe include numerous Snapdragon models such as Snapdragon 450, 460, 480, 615, 

625, 632, 636, 660, 662, 665, 675, 690, 710, 720G, 730, 730G, 750G, 765, 765G, 780G, 810, 835, 

845, 850, 855, 888, 7c, and 8c models. 



 
 

 
 

24 

 Infringement of the ’614 Patent 

88. On information and belief, Qualcomm imports, sells for importation, and/or sells 

within the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Qualcomm Accused 

Products”), such as System-on-Chip devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent. The Qualcomm Accused Products 

are configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent at the time 

of importation into the United States. 

89. Qualcomm also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 

1-9 of the ’614 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through previous correspondence 

between Future Link and Qualcomm (including a claim chart Future Link provided to Qualcomm 

identifying Qualcomm’s infringement of the ’614 Patent), through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 

referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’614 Patent litigation against Qualcomm, 

Qualcomm has had knowledge of the ’614 Patent and the infringing nature of the Qualcomm 

Accused Products. Despite this knowledge of the ’614 Patent, Qualcomm continues to actively 

encourage and instruct its customers and end users (for example, through its user manuals and 

online instruction materials on its website) to use the Qualcomm Accused Products in ways that 

directly infringe the ’614 Patent. Qualcomm does so knowing and intending that its customers and 

end users will commit these infringing acts. Qualcomm also continues to import, sell for 

importation, and/or sell in the United States the Qualcomm Accused Products, despite its 

knowledge of the ’614 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing its customers to 

infringe the ’614 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the Qualcomm 

Accused Products. 
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90. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’614 Patent to a representative 

Qualcomm Accused Product, the Qualcomm Snapdragon 730G, and including photographs and 

drawings where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 39. Additional exemplary products that are 

believed to infringe include numerous Snapdragon models such as Snapdragon 450, 460, 480, 615, 

625, 632, 636, 660, 662, 665, 675, 690, 710, 720G, 730, 730G, 750G, 765, 765G, 780G, 810, 835, 

845, 850, 855, 888, 7c, and 8c models. 

F. Realtek 

 Infringement of the ’439 Patent 

91. On information and belief, Realtek imports, sells for importation, and/or sells 

within the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Realtek Accused 

Products”), such as System-on-Chip devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent. The Realtek Accused Products are 

configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent at the time of 

importation into the United States. 

92. Realtek also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-

6 of the ’439 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through previous correspondence between 

Future Link and Realtek (including a notice letter Future Link sent to Realtek identifying Realtek’s 

infringement of the ’439 Patent), through the filing and service of this Complaint, and also through 

the filing and service of the related District Court complaints referenced in Section VIII, including 

the related ’439 Patent litigation against Realtek, Realtek has had knowledge of the ’439 Patent 

and the infringing nature of the Realtek Accused Products. Despite this knowledge of the ’439 

Patent, Realtek continues to actively encourage and instruct its customers and end users (for 

example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials on its website) to use the 

Realtek Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’439 Patent. Realtek does so knowing 
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and intending that its customers and end users will commit these infringing acts. Realtek also 

continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United States the Realtek Accused 

Products, despite its knowledge of the ’439 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing 

its customers to infringe the ’439 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the 

Realtek Accused Products. 

93. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’439 Patent to a representative 

Realtek Accused Product, the Realtek RTD1395, and including photographs and drawings where 

applicable, is attached as Exhibit 28. Additional exemplary products that are believed to infringe 

include RTD1295, RTD1296, RTD1319, RTD1315, RTD1619, CS7542, CS7522, CA8279, 

CA8271A, and CA82715. 

 Infringement of the ’614 Patent 

94. On information and belief, Realtek imports, sells for importation, and/or sells 

within the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Realtek Accused 

Products”), such as System-on-Chip devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent. The Realtek Accused Products are 

configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent at the time of 

importation into the United States. 

95. Realtek also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-

9 of the ’614 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through previous correspondence between 

Future Link and Realtek (including a notice letter Future Link sent to Realtek identifying Realtek’s 

infringement of the ’614 Patent), through the filing and service of this Complaint, and also through 

the filing and service of the related District Court complaints referenced in Section VIII, including 

the related ’614 Patent litigation against Realtek, Realtek has had knowledge of the ’614 Patent 

and the infringing nature of the Realtek Accused Products. Despite this knowledge of the ’614 
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Patent, Realtek continues to actively encourage and instruct its customers and end users (for 

example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials on its website) to use the 

Realtek Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’614 Patent. Realtek does so knowing 

and intending that its customers and end users will commit these infringing acts. Realtek also 

continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United States the Realtek Accused 

Products, despite its knowledge of the ’614 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing 

its customers to infringe the ’614 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the 

Realtek Accused Products. 

96. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’614 Patent to a representative 

Realtek Accused Product, the Realtek RTD1395, and including photographs and drawings where 

applicable, is attached as Exhibit 40. Additional exemplary products that are believed to infringe 

include the RTD1295, RTD1296, RTD1395, RTD1319, RTD1619, CS7542, CS7522, CA8279, 

CA8271A, and CA82715. 

G. Dell 

 Infringement of the ’439 Patent 

97. On information and belief, Dell imports, sells for importation, and/or sells within 

the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Dell Accused Products”), such 

as System-on-Chip, personal computer, tablet, and laptop devices, that directly infringe, literally 

and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent. The Dell Accused 

Products are configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent at 

the time of importation into the United States. 

98. Dell also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-6 

of the ’439 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 
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referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’439 Patent litigation against Dell, Dell has had 

knowledge of the ’439 Patent and the infringing nature of the Dell Accused Products. Despite this 

knowledge of the ’439 Patent, Dell continues to actively encourage and instruct its customers and 

end users (for example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials on its website) 

to use the Dell Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’439 Patent. Dell does so 

knowing and intending that its customers and end users will commit these infringing acts. Dell 

also continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United States the Dell Accused 

Products, despite its knowledge of the ’439 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing 

its customers to infringe the ’439 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the 

Dell Accused Products. 

99. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’439 Patent to a representative 

Dell Accused Product, the Dell Inspiron 11 3915, and including photographs and drawings where 

applicable, is attached as Exhibit 29. Additional exemplary products that are believed to infringe 

include Dell products having infringing AMD products.  

 Infringement of the ’614 Patent 

100. On information and belief, Dell imports, sells for importation, and/or sells within 

the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Dell Accused Products”), such 

as System-on-Chip, personal computer, tablet, and laptop devices, that directly infringe, literally 

and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent. The Dell Accused 

Products are configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent at 

the time of importation into the United States. 

101. Dell also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-9 

of the ’614 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 
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referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’614 Patent litigation against Dell, Dell has had 

knowledge of the ’614 Patent and the infringing nature of the Dell Accused Products. Despite this 

knowledge of the ’614 Patent, Dell continues to actively encourage and instruct its customers and 

end users (for example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials on its website) 

to use the Dell Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’614 Patent. Dell does so 

knowing and intending that its customers and end users will commit these infringing acts. Dell 

also continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United States the Dell Accused 

Products, despite its knowledge of the ’614 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing 

its customers to infringe the ’614 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the 

Dell Accused Products. 

102. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’614 Patent to a representative 

Dell Accused Product, the Dell Inspiron 11 3915, and including photographs and drawings where 

applicable, is attached as Exhibit 41. Additional exemplary products that are believed to infringe 

include Dell products having infringing AMD products. 

H. HP 

 Infringement of the ’439 Patent 

103. On information and belief, HP imports, sells for importation, and/or sells within the 

United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “HP Accused Products”), such as 

System-on-Chip, mobile phone, and laptop devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent. The HP Accused Products are 

configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent at the time of 

importation into the United States. 

104. HP also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-6 of 

the ’439 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through the filing and service of this Complaint, 
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and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints referenced in 

Section VIII, including the related ’439 Patent litigation against HP, HP has had knowledge of the 

’439 Patent and the infringing nature of the HP Accused Products. Despite this knowledge of the 

’439 Patent, HP continues to actively encourage and instruct its customers and end users (for 

example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials on its website) to use the HP 

Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’439 Patent. HP does so knowing and intending 

that its customers and end users will commit these infringing acts. HP also continues to import, 

sell for importation, and/or sell in the United States the HP Accused Products, despite its 

knowledge of the ’439 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing its customers to 

infringe the ’439 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the HP Accused 

Products. 

105. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’439 Patent to a representative 

HP Accused Product, the HP Envy X2, and including photographs and drawings where applicable, 

is attached as Exhibit 30. Additional exemplary products that are believed to infringe include the 

HP Elite Folio, the HP Chromebook 11A G8 Education Edition and other products having 

infringing AMD products. 

 Infringement of the ’614 Patent 

106. On information and belief, HP imports, sells for importation, and/or sells within the 

United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “HP Accused Products”), such as 

System-on-Chip, mobile phone, and laptop devices, devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent. The HP Accused Products 

are configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent at the time 

of importation into the United States. 
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107. HP also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-9 of 

the ’614 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through the filing and service of this Complaint, 

and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints referenced in 

Section VIII, including the related ’614 Patent litigation against HP, HP has had knowledge of the 

’614 Patent and the infringing nature of the HP Accused Products. Despite this knowledge of the 

’614 Patent, HP continues to actively encourage and instruct its customers and end users (for 

example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials on its website) to use the HP 

Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’614 Patent. HP does so knowing and intending 

that its customers and end users will commit these infringing acts. HP also continues to import, 

sell for importation, and/or sell in the United States the HP Accused Products, despite its 

knowledge of the ’614 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing its customers to 

infringe the ’614 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the HP Accused 

Products. 

108. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’614 Patent to a representative 

HP Accused Product, the HP Envy X2, and including photographs and drawings where applicable, 

is attached as Exhibit 42. Additional exemplary products that are believed to infringe include the 

HP Elite Folio, the HP Chromebook 11A G8 Education Edition and other products having 

infringing AMD products. 

I. Acer 

 Infringement of the ’439 Patent 

109. On information and belief, Acer imports, sells for importation, and/or sells within 

the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Acer Accused Products”), such 

as System-on-Chip, laptop, and tablet devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent. The Acer Accused Products are 
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configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent at the time of 

importation into the United States. 

110. Acer also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-6 

of the ’439 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 

referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’439 Patent litigation against Acer, Acer has had 

knowledge of the ’439 Patent and the infringing nature of the Acer Accused Products. Despite this 

knowledge of the ’439 Patent, Acer continues to actively encourage and instruct its customers and 

end users (for example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials on its website) 

to use the Acer Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’439 Patent. Acer does so 

knowing and intending that its customers and end users will commit these infringing acts. Acer 

also continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United States the Acer Accused 

Products, despite its knowledge of the ’439 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing 

its customers to infringe the ’439 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the 

Acer Accused Products. 

111. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’439 Patent to a representative 

Acer Accused Product, the Acer Spin 513 Chromebook, and including photographs and drawings 

where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 31. Additional exemplary products that are believed to 

infringe include the Acer Aspire 3 and other products having infringing AMD products. 

 Infringement of the ’614 Patent 

112. On information and belief, Acer imports, sells for importation, and/or sells within 

the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Acer Accused Products”), such 

as System-on-Chip, laptop, and tablet devices, that directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent. The Acer Accused Products are 
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configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent at the time of 

importation into the United States. 

113. Acer also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-9 

of the ’614 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 

referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’614 Patent litigation against Acer, Acer has had 

knowledge of the ’614 Patent and the infringing nature of the Acer Accused Products. Despite this 

knowledge of the ’614 Patent, Acer continues to actively encourage and instruct its customers and 

end users (for example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials on its website) 

to use the Acer Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’614 Patent. Acer does so 

knowing and intending that its customers and end users will commit these infringing acts. Acer 

also continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United States the Acer Accused 

Products, despite its knowledge of the ’614 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing 

its customers to infringe the ’614 Patent through the customers’ normal and customary use of the 

Acer Accused Products. 

114. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’614 Patent to a representative 

Acer Accused Product, the Acer Spin 513 Chromebook, and including photographs and drawings 

where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 43. Additional exemplary products that are believed to 

infringe include the Acer Aspire 3 and other products having infringing AMD products. 

J. Lenovo 

 Infringement of the ’439 Patent 

115. On information and belief, Lenovo imports, sells for importation, and/or sells 

within the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Lenovo Accused 

Products”), such as System-on-Chip, mobile phone, laptop, and tablet devices, that directly 



 
 

 
 

34 

infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent. 

The Lenovo Accused Products are configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-

6 of the ’439 Patent at the time of importation into the United States. 

116. Lenovo also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-

6 of the ’439 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 

referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’439 Patent litigation against Lenovo, Lenovo has 

had knowledge of the ’439 Patent and the infringing nature of the Lenovo Accused Products. 

Despite this knowledge of the ’439 Patent, Lenovo continues to actively encourage and instruct its 

customers and end users (for example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials 

on its website) to use the Lenovo Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’439 Patent. 

Lenovo does so knowing and intending that its customers and end users will commit these 

infringing acts. Lenovo also continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United 

States the Lenovo Accused Products, despite its knowledge of the ’439 Patent, thereby specifically 

intending for and inducing its customers to infringe the ’439 Patent through the customers’ normal 

and customary use of the Lenovo Accused Products. 

117. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’439 Patent to a representative 

Lenovo Accused Product, the Lenovo Tab P11 Pro Tablet, and including photographs and 

drawings where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 32. A claim chart comparing independent claim 

1 of the ’439 Patent to another representative Lenovo Accused Product, the Motorola Moto G 

Power, and including photographs and drawings where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 33. 

Additional exemplary products that are believed to infringe include the Lenovo Yoga Smart Tab, 

Motorola Edge, Motorola Edge+ Moto G Stylus 2020, Moto G Stylus 2021, Moto G Stylus 5G, 

Motorola Razr, Moto G7 Play, Moto G7 Plus, Moto G Play, Moto G Fast, Moto G Power 2020, 
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Motorola One 5G, Motorola One 5G Ace, Motorola One Hyper, and Moto E, as well as products 

having infringing AMD products. 

 Infringement of the ’614 Patent 

118. On information and belief, Lenovo imports, sells for importation, and/or sells 

within the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Lenovo Accused 

Products”), such as System-on-Chip, mobile phone, laptop, and tablet devices, that directly 

infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent. 

The Lenovo Accused Products are configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-

9 of the ’614 Patent at the time of importation into the United States. 

119. Lenovo also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-

9 of the ’614 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 

referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’614 Patent litigation against Lenovo, Lenovo has 

had knowledge of the ’614 Patent and the infringing nature of the Lenovo Accused Products. 

Despite this knowledge of the ’614 Patent, Lenovo continues to actively encourage and instruct its 

customers and end users (for example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials 

on its website) to use the Lenovo Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’614 Patent. 

Lenovo does so knowing and intending that its customers and end users will commit these 

infringing acts. Lenovo also continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United 

States the Lenovo Accused Products, despite its knowledge of the ’614 Patent, thereby specifically 

intending for and inducing its customers to infringe the ’614 Patent through the customers’ normal 

and customary use of the Lenovo Accused Products. 

120. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’614 Patent to a representative 

Lenovo Accused Product, the Lenovo Tab P11 Pro Tablet, and including photographs and 
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drawings where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 44.  A claim chart comparing independent claim 

1 of the ’614 Patent to another representative Lenovo Accused Product, the Motorola Moto G 

Power, and including photographs and drawings where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 45.  

Additional exemplary products that are believed to infringe include the Lenovo Yoga Smart Tab, 

Motorola Edge, Motorola Edge+ Moto G Stylus 2020, Moto G Stylus 2021, Moto G Stylus 5G, 

Motorola Razr, Moto G7 Play, Moto G7 Plus, Moto G Play, Moto G Fast, Moto G Power 2020, 

Motorola One 5G, Motorola One 5G Ace, Motorola One Hyper, and Moto E, as well as products 

having infringing AMD products. 

K. Google 

 Infringement of the ’439 Patent 

121. On information and belief, Google imports, sells for importation, and/or sells within 

the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Google Accused Products”), 

such as System-on-Chip, mobile phone, and smart home devices, that directly infringe, literally 

and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 Patent. The Google 

Accused Products are configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-6 of the ’439 

Patent at the time of importation into the United States. 

122. Google also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-

6 of the ’439 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 

referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’439 Patent litigation against Google, Google has 

had knowledge of the ’439 Patent and the infringing nature of the Google Accused Products. 

Despite this knowledge of the ’439 Patent, Google continues to actively encourage and instruct its 

customers and end users (for example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials 

on its website) to use the Google Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’439 Patent. 
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Google does so knowing and intending that its customers and end users will commit these 

infringing acts. Google also continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United 

States the Google Accused Products, despite its knowledge of the ’439 Patent, thereby specifically 

intending for and inducing its customers to infringe the ’439 Patent through the customers’ normal 

and customary use of the Google Accused Products. 

123. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’439 Patent to a representative 

Google Accused Product, the Pixel 4a, and including photographs and drawings where applicable, 

is attached as Exhibit 34. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’439 Patent to 

another representative Google Accused Product, the Chromecast with Google TV, and including 

photographs and drawings where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 47. Additional exemplary 

products that are believed to infringe include the Pixel 4a 5G, the Pixel 5, and Google Home Hub. 

 Infringement of the ’614 Patent 

124. On information and belief, Google imports, sells for importation, and/or sells within 

the United States after importation certain Accused Products (the “Google Accused Products”), 

such as System-on-Chip, mobile phone, and smart home devices, that directly infringe, literally 

and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 Patent. The Google 

Accused Products are configured to practice all claim limitations of at least claims 1-9 of the ’614 

Patent at the time of importation into the United States. 

125. Google also knowingly and intentionally induces infringement of at least claims 1-

9 of the ’614 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Through the filing and service of this 

Complaint, and also through the filing and service of the related District Court complaints 

referenced in Section VIII, including the related ’614 Patent litigation against Google, Google has 

had knowledge of the ’614 Patent and the infringing nature of the Google Accused Products. 

Despite this knowledge of the ’614 Patent, Google continues to actively encourage and instruct its 



 
 

 
 

38 

customers and end users (for example, through its user manuals and online instruction materials 

on its website) to use the Google Accused Products in ways that directly infringe the ’614 Patent. 

Google does so knowing and intending that its customers and end users will commit these 

infringing acts. Google also continues to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United 

States the Google Accused Products, despite its knowledge of the ’614 Patent, thereby specifically 

intending for and inducing its customers to infringe the ’614 Patent through the customers’ normal 

and customary use of the Google Accused Products. 

126. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’614 Patent to a representative 

Google Accused Product, the Pixel 4a, and including photographs and drawings where applicable, 

is attached as Exhibit 46. A claim chart comparing independent claim 1 of the ’614 Patent to 

another representative Google Accused Product, the Chromecast with Google TV, and including 

photographs and drawings where applicable, is attached as Exhibit 48. Additional exemplary 

products that are believed to infringe include the Pixel 4a 5G, the Pixel 5, and Google Home Hub. 

VI. SPECIFIC INSTANCES OF IMPORTATION 

A. AMD 

127. On information and belief, the AMD Accused Products are manufactured outside 

of the United States and sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United States, 

and/or sold within the United States after importation. For example, Exhibit 13 is a receipt from 

Newegg showing the purchase of AMD A8-9600 for delivery to an address in the United States. 

Exhibit 14 contains photograph(s) of the product and/or product packaging, delivered to an address 

in the United States, indicating that the A8-9600 is “MADE IN CHINA.” 

B. Apple 

128. On information and belief, the Apple Accused Products are manufactured outside 

of the United States and sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United States, 
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and/or sold within the United States after importation. For example, Exhibit 53 is a receipt from 

the Apple Store showing the purchase of an Apple iPhone SE for delivery to an address in the 

United States. Exhibit 54 contains photograph(s) of the product and/or product packaging, 

delivered to an address in the United States, indicating that the iPhone SE is “Assembled in China.” 

C. Amlogic 

129. On information and belief, the Amlogic Accused Products are manufactured 

outside of the United States and sold for importation into the United States, imported into the 

United States, and/or sold within the United States after importation. For example, Exhibit 10 is a 

receipt from Amazon.com showing the purchase of the D905 Android TV Box (which includes 

the Amlogic S905) for delivery to an address in the United States. Exhibit 12 contains 

photograph(s) of the product and/or product packaging, delivered to an address in the United 

States, indicating that the D905 is “MADE IN CHINA.” 

D. Broadcom 

130. On information and belief, the Broadcom Accused Products are manufactured 

outside of the United States and sold for importation into the United States, imported into the 

United States, and/or sold within the United States after importation. For example, Exhibit 10 is a 

receipt from Amazon.com showing the purchase of the Raspberry Pi 4 Model B (which includes 

the Broadcom BCM2711) for delivery to an address in the United States. Exhibit 11 contains 

photograph(s) of the product and/or product packaging, delivered to an address in the United 

States, indicating that the Raspberry Pi 4 Model B is “Made in the UK.” 

E. Qualcomm 

131. On information and belief, the Qualcomm Accused Products are manufactured 

outside of the United States and sold for importation into the United States, imported into the 

United States, and/or sold within the United States after importation. For example, Exhibit 21 is a 
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receipt from Newegg.com showing the purchase of a Lenovo Tab P11 Pro 11.5” Tablet 

Snapdragon 730G 4GB (which includes the Snapdragon 730G) for delivery to an address in the 

United States. Exhibit 22 contains photograph(s) of the product and/or product packaging, 

delivered to an address in the United States, indicating that the Lenovo Tab P11 Pro 11.5” Tablet 

Snapdragon 730G 4GB is “Made in China.” 

F. Realtek 

132. On information and belief, the Realtek Accused Products are manufactured outside 

of the United States and sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United States, 

and/or sold within the United States after importation. For example, Exhibit 15 is a receipt from 

Amazon.com showing the purchase of the Banana Pi BPI-M4 (which includes the Realtek 

RTD1395) for delivery to an address in the United States. Exhibit 16 contains photograph(s) of 

the product and/or product packaging, delivered to an address in the United States, indicating that 

the Banana Pi BPI-M4 is “MADE IN CHINA.” 

G. Dell 

133. On information and belief, the Dell Accused Products are manufactured outside of 

the United States and sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United States, 

and/or sold within the United States after importation. For example, Exhibit 17 is a receipt from 

Amazon.com showing the purchase of the Dell Inspiron 11 for delivery to an address in the United 

States. Exhibit 18 contains photograph(s) of the product and/or product packaging, delivered to an 

address in the United States, indicating that the Dell Inspiron 11 is “Made in China.” 

H. HP 

134. On information and belief, the HP Accused Products are manufactured outside of 

the United States and sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United States, 

and/or sold within the United States after importation. For example, Exhibit 19 is a receipt from 
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Amazon.com showing the purchase of an HP Envy X2 for delivery to an address in the United 

States. Exhibit 20 contains photograph(s) of the product and/or product packaging, delivered to an 

address in the United States, indicating that the HP Envy X2 was shipped from “HP Inc.” in China 

to “Amazon.com” in the United States. 

I. Acer Inc. 

135. On information and belief, the Acer Accused Products are manufactured outside of 

the United States and sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United States, 

and/or sold within the United States after importation. For example, Exhibit 51 is a receipt from 

Amazon.com showing the purchase of the Acer Spin 513 for delivery to an address in the United 

States. Exhibit 52 contains photograph(s) of the product and/or product packaging, delivered to an 

address in the United States, indicating that the Acer Spin 513 is “Made in China.” 

J. Lenovo 

136. On information and belief, the Lenovo Accused Products are manufactured outside 

of the United States and sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United States, 

and/or sold within the United States after importation. For example, Exhibit 21 is a receipt from 

Newegg.com showing the purchase of a Lenovo Tab P11 Pro 11.5” Tablet Snapdragon 730G 4GB 

for delivery to an address in the United States. Exhibit 22 contains photograph(s) of the product 

and/or product packaging, delivered to an address in the United States, indicating that the Lenovo 

Tab P11 Pro 11.5” Tablet Snapdragon 730G 4GB is “Made in China.” As an additional example, 

Exhibit 55 is a receipt from Motorola.com showing the purchase of a Motorola Moto G Power for 

delivery to an address in the United States. Exhibit 56 contains photograph(s) of the product and/or 

product packaging, delivered to an address in the United States, indicating that the Motorola Moto 

G Power is “Made in China.” 
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K. Google 

137. On information and belief, the Google Accused Products are manufactured outside 

of the United States and sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United States, 

and/or sold within the United States after importation. For example, Exhibit 57 is a receipt from 

the Google Store showing the purchase of a Pixel 4a for delivery to an address in the United States. 

Exhibit 58 contains photograph(s) of the product and/or product packaging, delivered to an address 

in the United States, indicating that the Pixel 4a is “made in Vietnam.” As an additional example, 

Exhibit 59 is a receipt from the Google Store showing the purchase of a Chromecast with Google 

TV for delivery to an address in the United States. Exhibit 60 contains photograph(s) of the product 

and/or product packaging, delivered to an address in the United States, indicating that the 

Chromecast with Google TV is “Made in Thailand.” 

VII. CLASSIFICATION OF THE ACCUSED PRODUCTS UNDER THE 
HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE 

138. The Accused Products are classified under at least the following subheadings of the 

Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States: 8517.12.00, 8517.62.00, and 8517.70.00 

(smartphones); and 8471.60.70 and 8542.31.00 (integrated circuit devices, laptops, tablets, and 

personal computers). These classifications are exemplary in nature and not intended to restrict the 

scope of any exclusion order or other remedy ordered by the Commission.  

VIII. RELATED LITIGATION 

139. Complainant filed complaints against Respondents in the Western District of Texas 

and the District of Delaware on December 22, 2021, alleging infringement of one or more claims 

of the ’439 and ’614 Patents, the same patents that have been asserted in this Complaint. See Case 

No. 6:21-cv-01344 (W.D. Tex.) (complaint against Acer Inc. and Acer America Corp.); Case No. 

6:21-cv-01345 (W.D. Tex.) (complaint against Advanced Micro Devices, Inc.); Case No. 6:21-cv-

01346 (W.D. Tex.) (complaint against Apple Inc.); Case No. 6:21-cv-01347 (W.D. Tex.) 
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(complaint against Broadcom Inc. and Broadcom Corp.); Case No. 6:21-cv-01348 (W.D. Tex.) 

(complaint against Dell Technologies Inc.); Case No. 6:21-cv-01349 (W.D. Tex.) (complaint 

against Google LLC); Case No. 6:21-cv-01350 (W.D. Tex.) (complaint against HP Inc.); Case No. 

6:21-cv-01351 (W.D. Tex.) (complaint against Lenovo Group Ltd., Lenovo (United States) Inc., 

and Motorola Mobility LLC); Case No. 6:21-cv-01352 (W.D. Tex.) (complaint against Qualcomm 

Inc. and Qualcomm Technologies, Inc.); Case No. 6:21-cv-01353 (W.D. Tex.) (complaint against 

Realtek Semiconductor Corp.); and Case No. 1:21-cv-01790-UNA (D. Del.) (complaint against 

Amlogic Holdings, Ltd. and Amlogic (CA) Co. Inc.). 

140. Intel Corporation previously filed a declaratory judgment action for non-

infringement and invalidity of several patents in the District of Delaware, and Complainant 

asserted infringement of the ’439 and ’614 Patents in its counterclaims to that litigation. All claims 

and counterclaims in that Delaware litigation were voluntarily dismissed as part of a settlement 

agreement.  

141. Intel Corporation also filed a petition for inter partes review of the ’614 patent, 

which the Patent Trial and Appeal Board declined to institute. Intel Corporation further filed a 

petition for inter partes review of the ’439 Patent, which was instituted and then voluntarily 

dismissed as part of a settlement agreement.  

142. Other than the litigations specified above, to Complainant’s knowledge, the 

Asserted Patents are not and have not been the subject of any other current or prior litigation. 

IX. DOMESTIC INDUSTRY 

143. A domestic industry exists under Section 337(a)(2) and 337(a)(3). In particular, a 

domestic industry exists as a result of NXP’s significant investments in plant and equipment and 

significant employment of labor and capital have been made with respect to Domestic Industry 

Products (“DI Products”) that practice and are protected by the Asserted Patents. 19 U.S.C. 
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§ 1337(a)(3)(A)-(B). Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(iv), Complainant has attached as 

Confidential Exhibit 61 a copy of the NXP license agreement.  

A. Technical Prong 

144. The Asserted Patents have led to significant and substantial investments in plant 

and equipment, labor and capital, and engineering and research and development with respect to 

products that practice one or more claims of the Asserted Patents (the “Domestic Industry 

Products”), including the exemplary NXP i.MX8 series processors.  

145. Exhibits 49-50 are claim charts demonstrating that the Domestic Industry Products 

practice the Asserted Patents. The following table identifies the exemplary Domestic Industry 

Products with the corresponding Asserted Patent and exemplary Asserted Claims(s) that are 

practiced by the Domestic Industry Products. 

Asserted Patent Exemplary 
Practiced 

Claims 

Exemplary Domestic Industry Products 

7,685,439 1 NXP i.MX8 series processors 

8,099,614 1 NXP i.MX8 series processors 

146. An exemplary claim chart showing how the Domestic Industry Products practice 

exemplary claims of the ’439 Patent is attached as Exhibit 49. This claim chart provides a basis 

for the domestic industry relating to the ’439 Patent.  

147. An exemplary claim chart showing how the Domestic Industry Products practice 

exemplary claims of the ’614 Patent is attached as Exhibit 50. This claim chart provides a basis 

for the domestic industry relating to the ’614 Patent.  

B. Economic Prong 

148. NXP has in the United States, with respect to the Domestic Industry Products, 

significant investments in plant and equipment, significant employment of labor and capital, and 
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substantial investments in exploitation of the Asserted Patents. These investments and employment 

are all tied to the Asserted Patents. Confidential Exhibit 9C is a declaration from a knowledgeable 

NXP witness detailing NXP’s significant and substantial activities, investments, and employment 

with respect to the Asserted Patents.  

149. NXP is the predecessor-in-interest of the Asserted Patents and, by virtue of a license 

back granted by Complainant, NXP is fully licensed to practice each of the Asserted Patents. See 

Confidential Exhibit 61 at 5-6. Within the United States, NXP designs, develops, manufactures, 

sells, and supports products that use technology claimed by the Asserted Patents.  

150. NXP was founded in 1953 as Philips Semiconductors, and changed its name to 

NXP Semiconductors in 2006. NXP is a worldwide leader in semiconductor technology.   

151. NXP has multiple facilities in the United States, including three wafer fabrication 

facilities, two of which are in Austin, Texas, and another in Chandler, Arizona. NXP’s U.S. 

Corporate Headquarters is in Austin, Texas, and NXP has numerous design and sales facilities, 

including in California, Indiana, Illinois, Michigan, Massachusetts, and Washington DC.  

152. Over the years, through its own patent filings and through company mergers, such 

as its merger with Freescale Semiconductor in 2015, NXP obtained hundreds of United States 

patents related to semiconductor manufacture and design, and continues to research, manufacture, 

and sell products at the forefront of this technology. Confidential Exhibit 9C at ¶ 3. 

153. NXP has invested and continues to invest significant sums in domestic labor and 

capital relating to the Domestic Industry Products. Details relating to NXP’s domestic expenditures 

on labor and capital are set forth in Confidential Exhibit 9C at ¶¶ 7-10. 

154. NXP has also invested and continues to invest significant sums in domestic plant 

and equipment relating to the Domestic Industry Products. Details relating to NXP’s domestic 

expenditures on plant and equipment are set forth in Confidential Exhibit 9C at ¶¶ 7, 11. 
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X. RELIEF REQUESTED 

155. Respondents have infringed and will continue to infringe the Asserted Patents as 

specified in Sections V and VI above, unless the Commission prohibits the importation into and 

sale within the United States after importation of the Accused Products.  

156. Accordingly, Future Link respectfully requests that the United States International 

Trade Commission: 

a) Institute an immediate investigation pursuant to Section 337(b)(1) of the Tariff Act of 

1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, into Respondents’ violations of Section 337 

arising from the sale for importation into the United States, importation, and/or sale 

within the United States after importation of certain integrated circuit products and 

devices containing the same that infringe the Asserted Patents; 

b) Schedule and conduct a hearing, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337 (c), for purposes of 

receiving evidence and hearing arguments concerning whether Respondents have 

violated Section 337 and, following the hearing, determine that Respondents have 

violated Section 337; 

c) Issue a permanent limited exclusion order, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(d)(1), 

excluding from entry into the United States certain integrated circuit products and 

devices containing the same that are imported, sold for importation, or sold after 

importation by the Respondents or any of their affiliate companies, parents, 

subsidiaries, licensees, or other related business entities, or their successors or assigns 

that infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Patents, including, without limitation, 

the specific Accused Products identified in this Complaint and the exhibits hereto; 

d) Issue permanent orders, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(f), directing Respondents and 

any of their principals, stockholders, officers, directors, employees, agents, distributors, 
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controlled (whether by stock ownership or otherwise) and majority-owned business 

entities, successors, and assigns to cease and desist from importing, selling, selling for 

importation, offering for sale, using, demonstrating, promoting, marketing, and/or 

advertising in the United States Respondents’ integrated circuit products and devices 

containing the same thereof that infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Patents, 

including, without limitation, the specific Accused Products identified in this 

Complaint and the exhibits hereto;  

e) Impose a bond on importation and sales of infringing products during the 60-day 

Presidential review period pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(j); and 

f) Grant all such other and further relief as it deems appropriate under the law, based upon 

the facts complained of herein and as determined by the investigation. 

Dated:  December 29, 2021 Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Matthew D. Aichele 
Reza Mirzaie   
Marc A. Fenster   
Brian D. Ledahl   
James A. Milkey 
Christian W. Conkle   
Minna Y. Chan 
Jonathan Ma 
Daniel Kolko 
RUSS AUGUST & KABAT 
12424 Wilshire Boulevard, 12th Floor  
Los Angeles, CA 90025  
Phone: (310) 826-7474  
E-Mail: rak_fls_itc@raklaw.com  
 
Matthew D. Aichele 
RUSS AUGUST & KABAT 
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UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 

In the Matter of 

CERTAIN INTEGRATED CIRCUIT 
PRODUCTS AND DEVICES 
CONTAINING THE SAME 

Investigation No. 337-TA-__ 

I, Richard Misiag, declare, in accordance with 19 C.F.R. § 210.12(a)(l), as follows: 

1. I am the General Manager of Future Link Systems, LLC and I am duly authorized to 
sign this Complaint; 

2. I have read the Complaint and am aware of its contents~ 

3. The Complaint is not being presented for any improper purpose, such as to harass or 
to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of the investigation or 
related proceeding; 

4. To the best of my knowledge, information and belief founded upon reasonable 
inquiry, claims, defenses, and other legal contentions therein are warranted by 
existing law or by a non-frivolous argument for the extension, modification, or 
reversal of existing law or the establishment of new law; 

5. The allegations and other factual contentions have evidentiary support or are likely to 
have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or 
discovery. 

I declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the 
foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed on December 29, 2021 ,.__ 

~-(~-----

Richard Misiag{ 
General Manager 
Future Link Systems, LLC 


